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Preface

Since reorganization of the Baltimore City Archives began in
1978, we have committed ourselves to elevate the public's awareness of
the great wealth of knowledge contained in the city's historical
records. The Records of a City: A Guide to the Baltimore City
Archives represents a major step toward this goal. After five years
of work, we are pleased to offer this guide to everyone who has an
interest in the history of Baltimore.

This volume could not have been written without support for our
efforts from Mayor William Donald Schaefer and the City of Baltimore.
In an era when municipal archives are a distinct rarity, Baltimore has
had the wisdom and foresight to provide for its historical records.

As a result, Baltimore is one of the best documented localities in the
nation, a factor that will insure long remembrance of the city's past.
Raltimore's "urban renaissance”™ and other accomplishments for which
the municipality is noted are now assured of a prominent place in
history.

Over the past six years, many people have contributed to the
preparation of this guide. A large measure of credit has to go to
Richard J. Cox, who served as City Archivist and Records Management
Officer from 1978 to mid-1983. It was his vision and commitment to
quality that transformed this program into the vital operation it is
today. Richard was also the first person to begin compiling and
editing information for the guide. Anne S.K. Turkos and Cynthia H.
Requardt put in many hours arranging and describing records, and Susan
Wertheimer David contributed to the cataloging of the mayor and city
council records. Karen Freeberger did an excellent job deciphering
our handwritings and typing the manmuscript. Without the unstinting
efforts of all these people, this project never would have seen the
light of day.

A special note of thanks goes to the National Historical
Publications and Records Commission (NHPRC), which funded two grants
for the archives. These grants allowed us to hire two archivists to
survey and catalog large quantities of historical records. In addition
to providing the money to make good intentions a reality, NHPRC also
supplied valuable guidance.

William G. LeFurgy




Introduction
American Municipal Records

Neglect has long characterized the condition of municipal and
local government records. Richard J. Cox in his 1983 study of local
govermment records situations in different states across the nation
found recurring problems in the use, storage, and availability of
materials.l This is a serious problem because these records are
essential sources for interpreting the history of people, localities,
and the nation as a whole. Awareness of the need to preserve local
government records has risen significantly within the last few years
among archivists, historians, and local officials, but a great deal of
effort is necessary to correct decades of dereliction.

While the Baltimore City Archives program is somewhat removed
from perfection, substantial effort has been put forward since 1978 to
preserve and make available the historical records of the city's
govermment. This guide - one of only a handful devoted to the records
of an American municipality - represents the culmination of our work
through September 1983. Despite the relatively large quantity of
historical records described here, work has only just begun. And
although the primary purpose of the guide is to advertise our
holdings, we also hope that this publication will contribute to
improvement of the records situation of other localities in the United
States.

History of the Baltimore City Archives

Baltimore was founded in 1729 and grew slowly during its first
fifty years. Stimulated by mamufacturing and trade, Baltimore quickly
became Maryland's principal city by the end of the American
Revolution; by 1800 it was the third largest city in the nation. This
transition from a rural village to a major urban center spawned an
increase in the size and complexity of Baltimore's govermment. During
the eighteenth century, the state controlled most of the town's
official activities. Beginning in the 1780s, residents sought more
self-government, a movement that reached fruition in 1796 when the
state granted Baltimore status as an incorporated city. The early
government was limited to a mayor, a city council, and several other
officials. After the War of 1812, the municipal govermment began to
expand into a multitude of agencies that replaced the private
individuals and voluntary associations that had traditionally
performed the bulk of public services. In 1898, a new city charter
established the forerunner of a modern administrative structure in
response to the city's continuing growth and need for improved
services. Charter revisions in 1925, 1946, and 1964 have shaped
Baltimore's government into its present responsive and wide-ranging
structure.

Ipocumenting America: Assessing the Condition of Historical Records
in the States (N.p.: National Association of State Archives and
Records Administrators, [1984]): 19-35.

8]
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The history of Baltimore's government in terms of records
creation and management is similar to that of most other large cities
in this country. For most of the eighteenth century - when the
government was small and its activity limited - comparatively few
records were produced. Lack of a formal organizational structure also
resulted in limited records retention. After incorporation in 1796,
the municipal govermment began to assume an increasing share of
responsibility, which in turn generated a growing amount of records.
Agencies with permanent employées and separate of fices also began to
retain more of the records produced. As the years passed and the
volume and complexity of municipal records expanded, problems of
storage and access developed. There was also hardly any thought given
to preservation of material for historical purposes.

In 1874, the municipality made a significant move toward hetter
record keeping practices hy establishing a city library. This office
had, among other duties, responsibility for maintenance and
preservation of the city's records. While little was accomplished
during the library's first few years, it had by the 1830s done some
limited collecting of material judged to be of historical value. The
work of the library reached a zenith in 1903 when Wilbur F. Coyle
assumed the post of librarian. Coyle gathered historical records,
arranged and indexed them, and published a collection of significant
eighteenth and nineteenth century documents. His resignation in 1920,
however, effectively ended this kind of work.

During the late 1930s, employees of the federally funded
Historical Records Survey (HRS) compiled extensive item indexes to
what was then seen as the entire corpus of the city's historical
records. While these indexes remain very useful today, the HRS failed
to make the most of its opportunity. Few records were added to the
archival collection, and little came of any records surveys
performed.

By the early 1950s, the mounting problem of records storage and
access grew too difficult to ignore. 1In 1954, the municipal
govermment created a records management program to deal with the
proliferation of current records. Although the new agency was given
control of the archival collection, no worthwhile work was done with
the municipality's historical records for nearly 25 years. The focus
of the program was instead upon storing and microfilming routine
records identified in a 1954 city-wide survey. The records management
program exercised comprehensive authoritv over the municipality's
records for only a brief period, however. Many agencies failed to
make use of the program's services, and by the mid-1960s only a small
amount of the municipality's records were under systematic control.

2For a detailed discussion of the archives's past, see Richard J.
Cox, "The Plight of American Municipal Archives: Baltimore,
1729-1979," American Archivist 42 (July 1979): 2R1-292.




Compounding the problem of a weak records program was the vast
growth of records generated by the municipality. The large sums of
federal money that flowed into Baltimore starting in the mid-1960s
came with reporting requirements that compelled city agencies to
compile mountains of reports, statistical summaries, grant
applications, correspondence, legal documents, and a host of other
record types. And as their work load increased, agencies expanded,
added staff, and continued to operate without proper records
management guidance.

Baltimore's municipal records situation improved in 1978 with the
hiring of a professional archivist and reorganization of the program.
The first four years were taken up with arranging and describing the
various historical records previously collected. Since 1981, it has
been possible to aggressively pursue extant historical records and
implement improved records management procedures. While much has been
accomplished, a great deal of work lies ahead.

Holdings of the Archives

The archives collects, preserves, and administers the official
records of the Baltimore municipal govermment judged to be of
historical significance. Available records date from 1729 to the
recent past, although most of the material is less than 75 years old.
While the primary focus of the records is the municipal government,
many other aspects of Baltimore's past are covered as well. An
extensive array of record types are present, including correspondence,
minutes, financial material, legal documents, forms, publications,
maps, reports, and working papers. A variety of indexes and finding
aids facllitate access to the material, and a knowledgeable staff is
ready to provide detailed reference service.

The holdings of the Archives represent only a portion of the
records created by the municipal govermment. 1In many cases, city
agencies have in the past routinely thrown away or carelessly stored
older records without concern for the possible historical value of the
material. 1In other instances, officials have taken records with them
after leaving municipal employment. Some records have also ended up
in the possession of other archival imnstitutions. The end result of
all this is that there are sizeable gaps in our collection. As our
work progresses, these gaps are filled in whenever possible.
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Using the Guide

The records of the archives are arranged according to archival
practice of record group and series, which is also used at the
National Archives and most state and local public archival
repositories. A record group is a body of records produced by a
single agency (and sometimes by predecessor agencies as well) or a
body of records that relate to a specific aspect or function of the
municipal govermment. Each record group is composed of one or more
series. A series is a group of documents arranged in accordaunce with
a filing system or maintained as a unit because they relate to a
particular function, result from the same activity, have a particular
form, or because of some other relationship arising ocut of their
creation, receipt, or use.

The Guide discusses each record group separately. Included is
the record group number, title, and date span; a brief administrative

- history of the agency or function that created the records; a summary

of the record's content and coverage; and a description of the
individual record series. FEach series description consists of series
number and title, date span, volume, and arrangement; reference is
also made to the presence of an index or other finding aid, if
appropriate. Fuller and more detailed descriptions of record groups
and series are available at the archives, along with a number of other
finding aids.

Several terms and expressions used to describe records require
some explanation. There are four abbreviated terms: cu. ft. (cubic
feet); lin. in. (linear inches); HRS (Historical Records Survey); and
RG (record group). DNates given after the record group and series
titles represent the chronological range within each batch of
material. Records with date ranges listed as to "present” are split
between the archives, which usually has records up to the last several
years, and the office of origin, which has the more recent accretions.
The term "box” may refer to an archival storage container-(.45 cu.
ft.), a records carton (1 cu. ft.), or any of three types of flat
storage boxes. Microfilm is usually in a roll format. Indicated
indexes or other finding aids are available for use at the archives.

3Frank R. Evans, et al, "A Basic Glossary for Archivists, Manuscript
Curators, and Records Managers,” American Archivist 37 (July 1974):
430.




The Records

RG 1 Town Commissioners (1729-97)

History

The state govermment created the Baltimore Town Commissioners
as part of the 1729 legislative act for "erecting” Baltimore Town.
Consisting of seven members, appointed for life, the commissioners
were empowered to buy land, to survey and sell lots, and to settle
disputes about property boundaries. The commission was the sole
vestige of town government until the early 1780s. 1In 1745, when Jones
Town became part of Baltimore, the commissioners gained authority to
levy a poll tax. The state granted the body additional power in 1784
to erect street lamps and have them lighted, appoint constables and
watchmen, levy a tax on property, and appoint a treasurer. Between
this year and 1793 the commissioners also possessed the powers of
justices of the peace. Occasionally the state assigned the
commissioners special duties including construction of market houses,
maintenance of streets, and collection of special assessments and
taxes. :

By the early 1780s the commissioners shared their
administrative responsibilities with two new bodies: a Board of
Baltimore Town Special Commissioners, which was mainly responsible for
the construction and maintenance of streets and bridges; and a Board
of Port Wardens, which regulated the construction of wharves, surveyed
the harbor, and levied a tax on vessels. Despite the presence of
these three bodies, essential administrative functions remained at
Annapolis with the state government. In the mid~1780s Baltimoreans
began to urge for incorporation to better regulate the town. The
legislature passed such an act in 1796, and the following year the
Baltimore Town Commissioners ceased to function. The new government
consisted of a mayor, city counclil, and a handful of officials that
absorbed the duties of the commissioners.

Records Summary

The records of the commissioners include minutes, surveys,
salary accounts, and financial records. Subjects covered are market
stall rentals, levy of special taxes and fees, inspection of cord
wood, and construction and repair of roads. Most of these records
have been published separately.

Series

1. Baltimore Town Commisgioners and Jones Town Commissioners
Record Book. 1729-47. 0.5 lin. in. (1 vol.).
Arranged chronologically.

2. Baltimore Town Commissioners and Jones Town Commissioners
Record Book. 1732-47. 0.5 lin. in. (1 vol.).
Arranged chronologically.




3. Baltimore Town Commissioners Record Book and Ledger.
1746-88. 2.5 lin. in. (1 vol.).
Arranged chronologically.

4, Baltimore Town Commissioners Ledger. 1782-86.
1.25 lin. in. (1 vol.).
Arranged chronologically.

5. Baltimore Town Commissioners Ledger. 1786-97.
0.5 1lin. in. (1 vol.). (Located at the Maryland
Historical Soclety, MS 103).

Arranged chronologically.

6. Cord Wood Inspectof's Record Rook. 1796-97.

0.25 1in. in. (1 vol.).
Arranged chronologically.

RG 2 "Barly Records of Baltimore™ (1756-97)

History

Record group 2 consists of a two volume set of early records
restored and bound together in chronological order. Most of the
records are those of the Board of Town Commissioners, the Board of
Special Commissionerd, and Board of Port Wardens (see RG 1). This
troika provided what little self-government Baltimore had until the
city's incorporation in 1796. The special commissioners were mainly
responsible for the construction and care of streets, and the port
wardens for the care of the harbor and construction of wharves. Both
bodies were incorporated, elected by an electoral college, and had
restricted powers for levying special taxes.

Records Summary

These records are similar in content to those described in
RG 1. For the most part administrative in nature, the material covers
land acquisition and sale, street and wharf construction, taxation,
and appropriations. Records include correspondence, financial
accounts, legal documents, and petitions.

Series
1. Administrative Records. 1756-97. 4 1lin. in. (2 vols.).

Index.
Arranged chronologically.
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RG 3 City Commissioners (1797-1899)

History

The municipality established the city commissioners in 1797,
shortly after the incorporation of the city government, for the
management of street paving, leveling, repaliring, opening, and closing
(see RG 58); the care of wells and pumps; and the establishment of
sewers and property boundaries. The complex work of the commissioners
was often performed in conjunction with other municipal, county, and
state agencies. Permission for the opening, extension, and closing of
streets was, up to the 1840s, required from the state; the
commissioners were responsible for the practical execution of the
work. The commissioners funded their work through special assessments
from affected property owners, special appropriations from the
municipal government, and loans.

Through the years the commissioners underwent a number of
administrative changes. From 1809 to 1820 they were united with the
City Health Commissioners (RG19), and from 1820 to 1850 and again from
1861 to 1863 they were associated with the Board of Port Wardens.
There were, in addition, other municipal agencies that labored under
the direction of the city commissioners. From 1807 to 1839 and after
1845 the Superintendent of Streets and Pumps performed duties under
the commissioners. Similarly, the commissioners supervised the work
of the Commissioners for Opening Streets from 1851 to 1861 and after
1866.

The maintenance of streets during the nineteenth century was
haphazard, experimental, and largely inadequate. Even so, street work
did represent the largest municipal expenditure during Baltimore's
early years. To improve street conditions, the 1898 charter abolished
the commissioners and placed their duties under a new Department of
Public Improvements, which in turn gave way to the present Department
of Public Works (RG47) in 1925.

Records Summary

The commissioners' records consist largely of general
administrative files covering the entire duration and range of their
responsibility. Subjects covered are street construction and repair;

acquisition of property; establishment of sewers; and construction and
repair of bridges and sidewalks. 1Included are correspondence,

reports, bonds, deedc a..! other property records, contracts, plats,
bills and receipts, pump warrants, and petitions.

Series

1. Administrative Files. 1798-1899. 40.6 cu. ft.
(116 hoxes).
Index.
Arranged sequentially by HRS assigned numbers.

2. City Commissioners Reports. 1893-94. 1.5 lin. in.
Arranged chronologically.
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RG 4 Property Tax Records (1798-present)

History

The taxation gystem in existence prior to the clty charter of
1796 was completely dependent upon the authority of the state
govermment. The beginning of a general property tax dates back to
1750 when the state allowed the Baltimore Town Commissioners (RG 1, RG
2) to levy an annual tax on each town lot. After their creation, the
Board of Special Commissioners (RG 1, RG 2) and the Board of Port
Wardengs (RG 1, RG 2) also introduced other taxes.

The municipal govermment established by the 1796 charter
brought autonomy to many aspects of the town's political life. The
state still dominated taxation, although implementation of the charter

.began a slow evolution toward a more independent taxation system for

the city. The earliest development of this system was the creatiom of
a collector (RG 40) and a register (RG 32) in 1797. The collector was
generally responsible for enforcing payment of all municipal taxes and
fees. The register maintained the city's official records and
functioned as treasurer for municipal funds. Throughout most of the
nineteenth century, the register most likely kept the older tax books
while the collector retained the current records.

The responsibilities of municipal agencies dealing with
taxation changed frequently. 1In 1841, the city created the Appeal Tax
Court (RG 5), which consisted of two assessors and the collector, to
serve as a board of review for assessment determinations. In 1852, an
auditor (RG 6) assumed control of tax collection and financial
accounting. The comptroller (RG 43), established in 1857, took over
the auditor's duties and eventually came to supervise the entire
financial affairs of the municipality for the balance of the
nineteenth century. With a new charter in 1898, the municipal
government gained independence from the state with regard to property
taxation. The charter established a Department of Finance composed of
the comptroller, register, collector, collector of water rents and
licenses, commissioners of finance, and board of estimates (RG 36).

In 1934, responsibility for taxes was turned over to a Department of
Assessments. In 1976, the municipality returned the function of
assessing property back to the state, which now performs assessments
on property in Baltimore on behalf of the city govermment.

Records Summary

Since numerous agencies have kept tax records over the years,
and since the records are of fairly uniform content, these materials
are maintained as a unit. Some related records are treated in

descriptions of the Appeal Tax Court (RG 5) and the collector (RG
40).

There are four basic types of property tax records. The first
type are the Field Assessor's Work Books (series 3 and 5), which were
used to gather preliminary information ahout property. The material
dates from 1837 to 1898 and 1907 to 1915. Details conceruning




individual structures abounds in these records, including use,
location, construction material, and number of stories. Data about
personal property such as horses, wagons, furniture, and store stock
algd appear regularly. Genérally speaking, these materials contain
the most information of all the tax records.

The second variety of records, the Assessor's Tax Records
(series 2), date from 1800 to 1866. These materials appear to be an
intermediate record of property taxation and contain the same kinds of
information as the Field Assessor's Work Books, but not in as much
scope or detail.

The third type of record is the General Property Tax Books
(series 1), which date from 1798 to 1915 and from 1966 to the present.
These records represent the final form of tax information for a given
year and appear to be based on information supplied by the Field
Assessor's Work Books and the Assessor's Tax Records. The primary
difference is that the data appearing in the tax books represents the
final assessment levied against property after any appeals. Details
provided about individual properties are similar to those found in the
Assessor's Tax Records with the addition of notations about date of
tax payment.

The fourth variety of materials are the Assessment Records
(series 4), which date from 1914 to 1976. These records contain
comparatively little information. Usually only the name and address
of the property owner, along with the assessed value of their
property, are included.

Most of the tax records are arranged by property location such
as wards, precincts, and streets. These entities changed conmstantly
in nineteenth century Baltimore, a fact that necessitates the use of
special maps of the city to locate specific properties or individuals
in many of the records. Some tax records are, however, accessible by
the name of individual taxpayers. These are the materials covered by
A Name Index to the Baltimore City Tax Records, 1798-1808 (Baltimore:
Baltimore City Archvies and Records Management Office, 1981) and the
General Property Tax Records (series 1) dating from 1856 to 1907.

Series

1. Property Tax Records. 1798-1915; 1966-present.
104 1in. ft. (1033 vols.).

Arranged k; rar and thereunder by ward or by taxpayer.

2. Assessor's Tax Records. 1800-66. 13 lin. ft.
(120 vols.).
Arranged by year and thereunder by ward.

3. Assessor's Field Books. 1837-98. 31 1lin. ft.
(495 vols.). :
Arranged by year and thercunder by ward.
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4. Assessment Records. 1914-76. 385 1in. ft. (6900 vols.).
Arranged by year and thereunder by ward.

5. Supplementary Assessor's Field Books. 1907-15. 18 1lin. ft.

(245 vols.).
Arranged by year and thereunder by ward.

RG 5 Appeal Tax Court (1841-1947)

History

The state government created the Appeal Tax Court in 1841. Two
assessors appointed annually by the mayor (RG 9) served as court
members along with the collector (RG 40). Duties of the court
included review of individual assessments, correction of assessment
errorg, and adjustment of assessments when property was sold or
damaged. Chief among the court's tasks was the dddition of new or
improved property to the tax rolls.

Throughout its existence, the form and function of the Appeal
Tax Court seems to have remained essentially the same. Retween 1861
and 1866, the municipality had the court perform the responsibilities
of the Commissioners of Opening Streets (see RG 58), which consisted
of laying out, opening, extending, widening and straightening streets.
In 1898, under the new municipal charter, the court became a division
of the DNepartment of Review and Assessments. The Appeal Tax Court's
powers diminished with the creation of the Department of Assessments
in 1934, and the Court was eventually abolished in 1947.

Records Summary

The available records of the Appeal Tax Court are varied, but
not extensive. Much of the material relates to the court's
responsibility to consider complaints about tax assessments and make
any necessary ad justments. There are also records relating to
agssegsments levied against newly identified property, both personal
and corporate. Some materials in the record group preceded the
court's founding in 1841, but appear to have been maintained by the
agency during {ts existence.

Series

1. Administrative Files, 1839-65. 1.1 cu. ft. (3 boxes).
Index.

Arranged sequentially by HRS assigned numbers.

2. Mimutes of the City Tax Commissioners. 1825-27.
1.5 1lin. in. (1 wvol.).
Arranged chronologically.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

Abatement Ledgers and Journals. 1824-85. 3 lin. ft.
(28 vols.).
Arranged chronologically.

Assessment Additions and Exemptions. 1842-66. 7 lin. in.
(4 vols.).
Arranged chronologically and thereunder by street address.

Appeal Tax Court Dockets. 1898-1905. 3.5 1lin. in.
(5 vols.).
Arranged chronologically by date of case.

Maryland Corporation Stock records. ca. 1861-1914.
11 1in. in. (4 vols.).
Arranged alphabetically by name of corporation.

Property Transfers and Releases. 1813-57. 10 1lin. in.
(7 vols.).
No visible arrangement.

Mortgage Releases. 1853, 1855-69. 1 lin. ft. (13 vols.).
Arranged chronologically and alphabetically by grantee.

Property Judgement Records. 1848-67. 8.5 1lin. in.
(5 vols.).
Arranged chronologically and alphabetically by grantee.

Baltimore Stock Record. 1856. 1 1lin in. (1 vol.).
Arranged alphabetically by stockholder name.

Appeal Tax Court Letterhook. 1853-54. 1 1lin. in.
(1 vol.).
No visible arrangement.

Mimites of the Board of Control and Review. 184647,
1858-59, 1900-01. 4 1lin. in. (3 vols.).
Arranged chronologically.

Tax Schedules of the Safe Deposit & Trust Company for 1907.
1906. 1 1lin. in. (1 vol.).
Arranged by schedule.

Minutes of the Board of Arbitration. 1859-63. 1 lin. in.
(1 vol.).
Arranged chronologically.

Assessments Against Banks, Distillers, and Incorporated

Companies. 1901~-14. 1.5 1lin. in. (1 vol.).
Arranged by business type and thereunder chronologically.
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RG 6 City Auditor (1852-62)

History

The municipality created the Baltimore City Auditor in 1852 to
audit tax collections, a duty the register (RG 32) previously
performed. 1In 1853 the register regained auditing responsibilities
vhen the auditor's duties were narrowed to the collection of tax
arrearages, a job until then of the collector (RG 40). The
nunicipality abolished the auditor and officlally transferred the
agency's responsibilities to the newly created office of comptroller
(RG 43) in 1857. Since many accounts remained open, the auditor
contimied to function at least until 1859 when the comptroller finally
gained complete control. But in 1860, the municipality extended the
odd existence of the auditor by reestablishing the position with joint
authority with the comptroller. By 1862, however, the comptroller and
collector had apparently absorbed all the work of the auditor and the
office cedsed to function.

The most recent position of auditor (RG 61) dates from the 1926

creation of the Depatrtment of Audits and has no relationship with this
earlier position.

Records Summary

Records of the auditor are, at best, spotty. There is some
general correspondence about property sold at public auction for tax
arrearages and about the opening and paving of streets. The remainder
of the material consists of tax receipts dating from the late 1850s.

Series

1. Journal. 1853-55. 3 lin. in. (1 wvol.).
Arranged chronologically.

2. Cash Books. 1854; 1856. 4 1lin. in. (3 vols.).
Arranged chronologically.

3. Tax Sales Record. 1855. 1.5 1lin. in. (1 vol.).
Arranged chronologically.

4. City Auditor's Correspondence. 1856-59. 2 1lin. in.
Arranged chronologically.

5. Reports. 1857-59. 2.25 lin. in.
Arranged sequentially by HRS assigned numbers.
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- RG 7 Civil Service Commission (1919-present)

History

A 1919 amendment to the city charter established the Baltimore
City Service Commigsion ("civil™ was exchanged for "city” in the
agency's title in 1960). The mayor appointed three unpaid
commissioners for six years, and the commissioners annually elected
one of their number as president. The commissioners in turn appointed
a salaried chief examiner who acted as both the secretary of the
commission and the administrator of examinations.

Creation of the commission in 1919 marked the culmination of a
lengthy effort to reorganize city personnel matters. The commission
was authorized to classify and re-classify all municipal jobs (with
the exception of mayoral appointments and appointments involving
teaching or supervisory work) and to make appointments based on a
merit system. The 1946 citv charter empowered the commission to
establish additional classes when deemed necessary and to rule on both
individual and group appeals concerning such matters as leave,
dismissals, and trangfers. Also required of the commission was
maintenance of eligibility lists for classified positions.

The commission was instrumental in the establishment of a
general municipal pension and retirement system in 1926. This plan
was the first of its kind in Baltimore and provided retirement,
disability, and death benefits for municipal employees. A board of
trustees determined the eligibility of employees for benefits from the
retirement fund. 1In conjunction with creation of the fund, the
commigssion established a mandatory retirement age of 70 for civil
service employees.

Although there were sporadic attempts to improve the efficiency
of the commission, the first successful effort came in 1954. The
commigsion at that time hired an independent company to develop
claggification, wage, and salary policies. Additional studies were
conducted in subsequent years in an effort to improve city personnel
functions.

Records Summary

The most important records for tracing the history of the
municipal civil service are the minutes of the commigssion. The first
few years of minutes de.-ribe general organizational matters. From
1922 to 1950 the minmutes mainly concern classifications and transfers,
leaves, and dismissals of individual employees. After 1950 the
minutes generally discuss examinations and special group appeals. The
remainder of the records consist of general administrative records of
the commisgsion and personnel records. Personnel records are
restricted and require prior authorization before their use.
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Series

10.

11.

12.

Minutes. 1919-73. 8 1in. ft. (63 vols.).
Arranged chronologically.

Medical Examiner Diary. 1 1lin. in. (1 wol.).
Arranged chronologically.

General Correspondence. 1966-74. 0.675 cu. ft.
(1.5 boxes).
Arranged chronologically.

Subject Correspondence. 1921~78; bulk dates 1966-75.
3.4 cu. ft. (7.5 boxes). File folder listing.
Arranged by subject.

Personnel File Cards. 1920-72; bulk dates 1920-55.
108 reels of microfilm. Restricted.
Arranged alphabetically by surname.

Labor Registration Bureau Registration Cards. 1935-54.

3 reels of microfilm. Restricted.

Arranged chronologically and alphabetically thereunder by
surname.

Classified Applications. 1920~74; bulk dates 1920-66.

69 reels of microfilm. Restricted.

Arranged chronologically and alphabetically thereunder by
surname.

Roster Index Cards of Ex-employees. 1920-65.
19 reels of microfilm. Restricted.
Arranged alphabetically by surname.

Roster Cards. 1926-57. 6 reels of microfilm. Restricted.
Arranged alphabetically by surname.

Medical Services Division Administrative Subject Files.
1941-78. 1.1 cu. ft. (2.5 boxes). File folder listing.
Arranged by subject.

Personnel Files. 1977. 8 reels of microfilm.
Arranged alphabetically by surname.

Fire Department Roster Cards. 1920-57.

2 reels of microfilm. Restricted.
Arranged alphabetically by surname.
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RG 8 Commission for Historical and Architectural Preservation
(1964-present)

History

The municipality established the Commission for Historical and
Architectural Preservation (CHAP) in 1964 "to preserve the historic,
cultural, educational and architectural value of buildings and
structures located in certain areas in the city.” The main tasks of
CHAP have been designating historical and architectural preservation
districts and compiling landmark lists; the agency also operates a
salvage depot and advises on historical and architectural
preservation. The commission is composed of eleven members appointed
by the mayor with the approval of the city council. Members serve
five-year terms and a salaried executive director runs the
commigssion's daily operation.

Records Summary

With the exception of the first two series, the records of the
commission are maintained permanently in its offices. The records
consist of research files on the preservation districts and other
historical buildings and the minutes of the commission, which cover
its activities in architectural preservation projects. Series

Series

l. Square Mile Sheets and Miscellaneous Building Plans.
1964-present. 1 reel of microfilm.
No arrangement.

2. Minutes of the Commigsion. 1964-present. 2 reels of
microfilm.
Arranged chronologically.

3. Building Surveys. 1964-present.
Arranged alphabetically by building.

4. Historic District Building Files, 1964-present.
Arranged alphabetically by building.

5. Landmarks List. 1964-present.
Arranged alphabetically by site.
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RG 9 Mayor (1797-present)

History

The municipal government established in 1796 was modeled after
the federal constitution with & two-branch legislature (city council)
and an independent executive (mayor). Reflecting a conservative
philosophy, the charter restricted office holding and voting to men of
means. The council's two branches provided both a voice to the
general populace through a popularly elected lower chamber and a
conservative influence through an upper chamber composed of the social
and political elite. Members of the lower chambér, or first branch,
of the council had to possess $1,000 of assessed property and were
popularly elected on an annual basis, two from each ward. Ballots
were cast by voice vote by residents owning property worth at least
thirty pounds currency. Every other year, voters selected one elector
from each ward and the electors in turn chose the eight members of the
upper chamber, or second branch, of the council. The electors also
chose the mayor, who had to own $2,000 worth of property. It was also
necessary to own $2,000 in property to serve in the second branch.

The 1796 charter granted the mayor and city council specific
power to regulate markets, streets, lots, bridges, police, fire
companies, sewers, public health, and waterways. The municipal
government also levied taxes and enacted all laws necessary to govern
the city within the authority conferred by the charter. While this
system gave Baltimore more local authority than it had ever possessed,
the state continued its traditional dominance in many areas; the state
was, in fact, reluctant to part with its traditional power even into
the twentieth cetury.

According to the charter, the mayor assumed the position of
prime importance in the municipal government. Mayoral authority
covered supervision of elections, enforcement of ordinances, and veto
power. The mayor also appointed all city officers from a list
supplied by the council; supervised the police force, harbor dredging,
and street lighting; directed a variety of attempts to introduce fresh
water into the city; and administered the municipal budget. Equipped
with a broad range of responsibility and prerogative, the mayor's
office was firmly established as the most significant element of
Baltimore govermment by 1800.

Many aspects of the Baltimore executive changed during the
antebellum period. The mayor for the first two decades under the 1796
charter selected one of two candidates named by the council for each
official position. 1In 1817, the mayor gained authority to freely
nominate any individual he wished with the advice and consent of the
council. The most significant change occurred in 1833 when the gtate
revised the city electoral system and provided for direct election of
the mayor.
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